
1
City Council Minutes – September 16, 2013

City of Phoenix
City Council Meeting
Public Works Office

1000 S. “B” Street
Monday, September 16, 2013

CALL TO ORDER
Mayor Jeff Bellah called the regular meeting of the City Council to order on Monday, September
16, 2013 at 6:30 p.m. in the Public Works Office.

ROLL CALL

PRESENT: Stan Bartell, Bruce Sophie, Karen Jones, Carolyn Bartell, Terry
Helfrich, Chris Luz, Jeff Bellah

Staff Present: Steve Dahl, City Manager/Recorder
Janette Boothe, Deputy City Recorder
Derek Bowker, Chief of Police
Steve Weber, Finance Director
Kurt Knudsen, City Attorney

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

MAYOR’S COMMENTS:
Mayor Bellah commented on the study session held last Thursday, September 16, 2013 stating
that is was supposed to be to discuss the issues with the communication problems between
Council and Urban Renewal. He added that at times, the discussion got a little too heated, and
he included himself in participating in this. Due to the actions that took place at the prior
meeting, he prepared a statement (on file) and read it aloud regarding the proceedings to follow
from now on regarding respect towards others at meetings.

UNFINISHED BUSINESS:
Phoenix City Council Tracking Log. Mr. Dahl noted he updated the log after the last meeting
and he inquired whether there were any further changes from Council. Councilor Jones
requested the updates to the ordinances have a period associated with changes to the ordinances,
so there is a priority list. Mayor Bellah requested Mr. Dahl make the update changes on the
action log available on the City website.

NEW BUSINESS:
1) Payment of Home Depot’s Money for Fern Valley Interchange. Mr. Weber explained the

nature of the irrevocable letter of credit to ODOT for the City’s estimated costs associated
with the Fern Valley Interchange Project and its purpose. He further explained the purpose
of this resolution is primarily due to the prevention of over-expenditure in the 2013-14
budget year. Mayor Bellah asked for further clarification regarding the amount that the letter



2
City Council Minutes – September 16, 2013

will include. Mr. Weber explained the letter will be for the full amount of the agreement,
which is $1,000,000. MOVED BY SOPHIE, SECONDED BY JONES, TO ADOPT
RESOLUTION NO. 875, AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO SEEK ISSUING
AN IRREVOCABLE LETTER OF CREDIT TO ODOT FOR THE CITY’S ESTIMATED
COSTS ASSOCIATED WITH THE FERN VALLEY INTERCHANGE PROJECT.

ROLL CALL VOTE AS FOLLOWS:
Ayes: Sophie, C. Bartell, Jones, S. Bartell, Chris Luz, and Helfrich
MOTION APPROVED WITH SIX AYES

2) Council Support for a Resolution to initiate formation of a Jackson County Agricultural
Extension Service-Presentation and Discussion. Ron Myers , Mr. Myers expressed the
reason for the resolution and gave the background of the Southern Oregon Research and
Extension Center. He further explained they have lost their funding for the program and they
would like to have this issue on the ballot for taxpayers vote to save the program. He further
explained that the resolution would give the authority for each City to be involved in the
program; however, the approval of the resolution would simply place the item on the ballot.
Further explanation followed, as Council requested a resolution for Council approval at the
following meeting, along with further information regarding how many special districts are
attempting formation.

3) Discussion on user fee on residents of RV Parks over 29 days. Mayor Bellah tabled this
discussion until the following meeting. Councilor Sophie added that he would like staff
research whether other cities in Southern Oregon have adopted this idea or would the City be
setting a precedence with this item. Mr. Dahl responded that this information will be in the
agenda packet for the following meeting.

4) Update on Urban Renewal Workshop held September 12, 2013. Mayor Bellah gave a brief
summary of the events that took place and proposed to Council meeting with the Urban
Renewal Board as soon as possible. Councilor Luz mentioned that the Mail Tribune listed
Thursday night as when this meeting would be held. Further discussion followed, as Council
requested staff to correct this information on the City’s website, as the Urban Renewal Board
will be holding a meeting; however, Council will not be in attendance.

Citizen Comments:
1) David van de Velde, Phoenix, shared a letter a citizen wrote that was unable to attend

tonight’s meeting. The letter expressed that of the three options the Mayor gave at the
meeting held September 12, 2013, the option favored is option 1, which would continue
with PHURA as is, an independent agency separate from the Council. He added that he
would choose option 1 as well.

2) Jason Couch, Phoenix, strongly favored option 1; however, if that is not possible, he
would go with option 4.

3) Mike Stitt, Phoenix expressed he is in favor of option 1, which includes the ordinance
that all the responsibility is left to the Urban Renewal Board. He further noted that the
same executive director created the changes made in Talent, and the improvement is
remarkable.



3
City Council Minutes – September 16, 2013

4) Glen Hill,Phoenix, noted he had been part of the planning commission when the
ordinance was passed regarding Urban Renewal and he is in favor of option 1.
Additionally, he noted the changes in Talent and recommended sticking with the
professional that was involved in Talent and work on communication.

5) Mark Tuttle, Phoenix, expressed he is unaware of the current issues the Council is facing
regarding Urban Renewal; however, he wanted to introduce himself as part of the
community and announced there is a world renowned animal trainer that has moved onto
the property across from his home and plans to bring a teaching zoo for the public.
Further discussion followed.

6) Linda Sturgeon, Phoenix, apologized for not being informed regarding the current issues
the City is facing; however, she has heard concerns from council members regarding the
communication problems with Urban Renewal and she would like to hear what the issues
are specifically. She further inquired when this discussion will take place. Mayor Bellah
expressed that this seems like a reasonable idea.

7) Kelly Freeborn, came forward to express her gratitude for the response she received from
many members of the council regarding a letter she addressed to council. She added that
she is in favor of option 1 and noted she has been in attendance at many of the Urban
Renewal meetings and would like to see it continue as it has.

8) Andrea Adams, The Greenery, thanked council for the workshop item regarding the
House Bill 3460. Additionally, she brought up the issue of the parking ordinance in the
downtown area again, and expressed she would like to see this addressed, as it is an issue
she currently faces. In addition, she came forward to offer ideas to encourage the
Spanish-speaking members of the community to get involved in the City by offering
some Spanish translation on the City’s website. Mayor Bellah commented that he has
talked with members in the community that would like to be involved in a project geared
towards getting the information out and feedback from the Spanish-speaking community.

9) Tony Chavez, Phoenix, came forward to express he is not informed; however, he noted
he moved into the City of Phoenix in 2004 and chose Phoenix over Talent, for its
potential and community feel; however, since that time he has noticed Talent has a lot of
community events and the town is much more presentable than before. He added that he
would like to see the City at least accomplish what the City of Talent has. He added that
he is the owner of the Gypsy Trader downtown and he would like to see things change
for the better for the community. He added the public needs to be more informed, by
possibly advertising the meetings on a trailer marque. Councilor Jones noted the City is
looking into a marque; however, for the time being she noted Urban Renewal sends out
information to each residence in the City and the City newsletters are sent to each of the
residences as well. Mayor Bellah requested any ideas from the public for better
communication. Mr. Chavez additionally noted he has a place to post information at his
business regarding community events as well.

STAFF REPORTS:
1) City Attorney’s Report:

a) Attorney Knudsen noted there is no new information regarding either of the cases
currently under litigation.



4
City Council Minutes – September 16, 2013

2) City Manager’s Report:
a) Mr. Dahl announced the candidate chosen for the Public Works Superintendent position

turned the position down, as he was not comfortable taking the risk of filling a nonunion
position.

b) He announced that a letter has been sent to the RV parks regarding the new transient tax
that was approved by council. He added that he plans to meet with the RV parks that will
be affected by this and begin collecting this tax in October.

c) He commented he plans to begin reviewing City contracts involved with contracted
personnel along with contracted personnel shortly.

d) He announced Dale Schulze, the Planning Director, has confirmed he is retiring before
the end of the year. Councilor Helfrich inquired where the Planning Director is at with the
downtown parking issue. Mr. Dahl noted he would speak to Mr. Schulze to find out.
Councilor Sophie requested an electronic copy of the Planning Commission minutes from
the meetings be sent to Council. Mr. Dahl assured him that he would take care of that.

COUNCIL ITEMS, COMMENTS/REPORTS:
1) Councilor Helfrich thanked everyone in attendance for his or her interest and comments

during the meeting.
2) Councilor Jones asked for volunteers to assist with the food bank delivery scheduled for

Saturday, September 21, 2013 at 8:30 a.m.
3) Councilor Sophie thanked everyone for their attendance as well.
4) Councilor S. Bartell reiterated appreciation for public interest and mentioned he is looking

forward to better communication with the public.
5) Councilor Luz commented the Water Commission is on track to submit their

recommendation by the end of the month.
6) Mayor Bellah thanked everyone for his or her input and candor.

The meeting recessed at 7:51 p.m.

WORKSHOP:
House Bill 3460-Directs Oregon Health Authority to establish registration system for medical
marijuana facilities for transferring usable marijuana from registry identification cardholders.
Attorney Knudsen gave a PowerPoint presentation on House Bill 3460 as he took questions from
Council and members of the audience.

The meeting adjourned at 9:10 p.m.

Respectfully submitted, Attest:

Janette Boothe Steve Dahl
Deputy City Recorder City Manager/Recorder


